
Beverly Hills            Municipal Building 
Regular Village Council Meeting     18500 W. 13 Mile Rd.  
Tuesday, October 2, 2018       7:30 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Roll Call/Call to order 
  
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Amendments to Agenda/Approve Agenda 
 
Community Announcements 
 
Public Comments on items not on the published agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held September 18, 
2018. 

2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, October 1, 2018. 
3. Refer request from Detroit Country Day, 22305 W. 13 Mile Road, for site plan and special 

land use approval to the Planning Commission for review and recommendation. 
4. Approve payment to Canfield Equipment Service for Police Vehicle Update 
5. Approval of payment to Johnson Thermal Temp for Public Safety cooling system repair 

 
Business Agenda 

1. Review and consider subcommittee’s recommendation to fill the vacancy on the Birmingham 
Area Cable Board. 

2. Review and consider awarding contract for the 2018 Road Improvement Program 
3. Review and consider approval of Concurrence Form for request for Declaration Ruling on 

Lead and Copper Rules. 
4. Set Public Hearing date of November 6, 2018 to receive comments on special land use 

request by Woodside Athletic Club, 22440 W Thirteen Mile Road 
 

Public comments  
 
 Manager’s report 
 
 Council comments 
 
 
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers 
for the hearing impaired and audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to 
individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three working days’ notice to the Village.   
 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
calling Chris Wilson, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 - PAGE 1 

Present: President Mooney; President Pro-Tem Peddie; Members: Abboud, Delaney, 

Mueller, Nunez, and Oen 

 

Absent: None 

 

Also Present: Village Manager and Clerk, Wilson 

 Village Attorney, Ryan 

 Public Safety Director, Torongeau 

 

President Mooney called the regular Council meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. in the Village of Beverly 

Hills municipal building at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited 

by those in attendance.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Oen, second by Mueller to approve the agenda. 

  

Motion passed. 

 

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Bill Galvin, Farmington, Candidate for Oakland County Commissioner of the 14th District, spoke 

about his history of practicing non-partisan community minded government in various roles he has 

served in the community.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Candice Cardenas, Kennoway Circle, expressed her concern about the safety risks posed by a lack 

of sidewalks along 13 Mile between Kennoway Circle and Groves High School.  

 

Mooney advised her Administration would follow up with her. 

 

Rachael Hrydziuszko, Evergreen, thanked Council for the installation of the crosswalk across 

Beverly Road to reach Beverly Park. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Oen, second by Peddie, be it resolved that the Council for the Village of Beverly 

Hills approve the consent agenda.  

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held September 

4, 2018. 

2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, September 17, 2018. 

3. Review and consider request from Our lady Queen of Martyrs to install banner at the 

northwest corner of Dunblaine and Southfield. 

4. Review and consider request from Our Lady Queen of Martyrs to use Village streets 

and sidewalks for their Oktoberfest 5K Race rescheduled for October 6, 2018. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 - PAGE 2 

BUSINESS AGENDA  

ANNOUNCEMENT OF A VACANCY ON THE BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD 

A vacancy exists on the Birmingham Area Cable Board with a term expiration date of June 30, 

2020. The Cable Board meets at 7:45 a.m. on the third Wednesday of each month in the Village 

Council Chamber. They advise the Village Council as to all matters related to Cable Television. 

The Board monitors performance of the franchisee and compliance with the franchise agreement 

and acts as liaison between residents and the franchisee. 

 

Applications will be accepted until the vacancy is filled. 

 

SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

CHAPTER 5 §5.03 AND §5.04; CHAPTER 14 §14.30 AND CHAPTER 42 §42.02, 42.03, 

42.04, 42.07(6), 42.12, 42.18 AND 42.20 REGARDING PENALTIES IN THE MUNICIPAL 

CODE 

Tom Ryan explained that previously Zoning Violations had been de-criminalized, and this revised 

language will classify the violations a civil infractions. 

 

A copy of the ordinance is available at the Village office. 

 

Motion by Oen, second by Nunez, to adopt Ordinance #363 amending;  

 

Chapter 5 Streets, Alleys And Sidewalks, Sections 5.03 – Water Damage Into Street; and 

5.04 Debris In Streets, Penalties; Chapter 14 Dogs and Other Animals, Section 14.30 

Penalties; and Chapter 42 Offenses Against Public Peace, Safety and Morals, Sections 

42.02 – Bonfires; 42.03 - Hitchhiking, 42.04 – Expectorating; 42.12 – Games In Streets; 

42. 18 – Depositing Of Snow, Ice or Slush; and 42.20 – Noise Control, Penalties. 

 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Motion passed (7-0) 

 

This ordinance shall become effective 20 days following publication in the Eagle newspaper. 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY 

HILLS AND NYHART REGARDING THE OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

(OPEB) TRUST 

This proposal is for an evaluation of annual OPEB contributions (retiree health care contributions) 

made by the Village of Beverly Hills to the OPEB trust by The Howard E. Nyhart Company, Inc. 

Administration believes it is important to have an evaluation done at this time to determine the 

level of contributions going forward so the liability is satisfied but also so the Village does not 

over contribute to the retiree health care fund. 

 

OPEB Report (Other Post-Employment Benefits/Retiree Health Care) – As part of the audit 

process, the Village received an updated OPEB report from Nyhart as of June 30, 2018. This report 

significantly lowered our projected net OPEB liabilities from $8,775,084 as of June 30, 2017 to 

projected net OPEB liabilities of $3,436,777 as of June 30, 2018. These calculations were based 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 - PAGE 3 

upon an expected rate of return of 6.00% for FYE 2017 and a higher revised expected rate of return 

of 7.75% for FYE 2018. 

 

The result of the higher revised expected rate of return, as well as lower than expected annual 

increases in health care premiums, have increased our OPEB funding ratio from 41.2% to 66.9%. 

Based upon the revised valuation, it is Nyhart’s opinion that the Village is at risk of contributing 

too much to the MERS retiree health care fund if contributions are not lowered. Due to the 

decreased liability, it is important that we have a better understanding as to what our retiree health 

care contributions should be in the future. This proposal will guide us in understanding what level 

of contributions is appropriate in future years. Administration has reviewed this report and 

recommends accepting and approving the proposal from Nyhart. 

 

Ryan confirmed that this was considered a professional service and therefore did not need to be 

put out for bids. 

 

Delaney summarized an email submitted by resident Peter Webster, who encouraged diligence in 

verifying that the company manages the monies well. 

 

Motion by Delaney, second by Oen, be it resolved that the Beverly Hills Village Council 

approve and authorize the Village Manager to sign and execute “The Howard E. Nyhart 

Company, Inc. Service Agreement” in the amount of $4,000 to provide consulting services 

regarding projected OPEB Trust assets, benefit payments and actuarially determined 

contributions. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

Consumers Gas Projects – Consumers has completed the gas line replacement project at 13 Mile 

and Lahser. That intersection was reopened for all traffic lanes as of September 12th. Consumers 

has received permits for two other similar projects at Saxon and Beaconsfield and Kirkshire and 

Madison. A temporary blockage of Saxon may be required for that project. Village Administration 

is working on another permit request for a gas main replacement project at the intersection of 14 

Mile and Evergreen. This project will require a closure of one lane of traffic through this 

intersection for a period of 7-10 days. Obviously, this will cause some traffic problems. Village 

Administration has scheduled a meeting with the homeowners association immediately west of 

Evergreen to discuss the options for potential lane closures and detours. We will also be 

coordinating this with Birmingham Schools. 

 

Traffic Study – The Village is in receipt of the traffic study that was commissioned at the request 

of the homeowners association west of the intersection of 14 Mile and Evergreen. There have been 

concerns from the residents in this area regarding cut through traffic trying to avoid the 

intersection. Per the results of the traffic study there is justification for limiting turns off of 14 Mile 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 - PAGE 4 

and Evergreen onto these local streets. There are also various options for how this can be 

accomplished. Village Administration will be meeting with HOA representatives to discuss the 

various options and their preferred resolution. The HOA has also indicated a desire to discuss a 

possible Special Assessment District (SAD) for the installation of sidewalks within the 

subdivision. 

 

Lead and Copper Rules Revisions – The Great Lakes Water Authority, Detroit Water and Sewer 

Department and the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner have filed a Request for a 

Declaratory Ruling with the MDEQ challenging the validity of various sections of recent changes 

to the Lead and Copper Rules. These entities have identified more than two dozen statutory and 

legal defects in the proposed rule changes that they feel need to be addressed. SOCWA, at its most 

recent regular meeting approved a Concurrence Form with the plaintiff’s findings to be submitted 

with the Request for a Declaratory Ruling. SOCWA has requested that all its member communities 

do the same. Ryan will review this request to deem whether it is appropriate to bring before Council 

for your review and consideration. 

 

Hydrant Replacement – The Village is embarking on hydrant replacement program that will 

replace nineteen (19) different hydrants throughout the Village. All these hydrants are in good 

working order but were installed prior to 1930. Accordingly, it is becoming increasingly difficult 

to acquire parts for these hydrants in the event of a failure. It is necessary to shut the water off to 

a particular section of water main to replace the hydrants. The Village will be notifying any 

affected residences of an upcoming water shut off and any potential boil water requirements. 

 

Water Testing – The Village has completed residential water testing as required by the DEQ. A 

total of 148 homes were submitted, The DEQ required the submission of 60 samples. All homes 

tested in June 2018 will be retested in December 2018. Any resident who wishes to have their 

water tested during the December 2018 testing can contact the Village and their water can be tested 

at no cost to them. 

 

Results of Litigation Regarding the November Ballot Proposal - Ryan reported that August 14, 

2018 was the State mandated deadline to file any ballot proposals for the November 2018 election. 

The Parks Millage language was signed by the Governor on July 25, 2018 and mailed by the Village 

Clerk on July 31, 2018. On August 27, 2018, Oakland County informed Administration that the 

ballot language for the Village was not received and therefore could not be placed on the November 

ballot. In a signed affidavit the clerk attests that the language was signed and mailed via the US 

Postal Service on July 31, 2018. On August 31, 2018 the County maintained they were unable to 

locate the mail and took the position that the envelope was not received. 

 

Ryan went before Judge Anderson in the Oakland County Court, and the request was denied. 

Therefore, the proposal will not be on the November 2018 ballot. 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mueller invited residents to attend the Read in the Park Event, Saturday September 22 from 1-4 

pm. More information about the event is located on the Village website. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 - PAGE 5 

Abboud reported the Zoning Board of Appeals approved variances for several new homes being 

built. 

The Planning Commission continues to work with representatives from the Southfield and 13 Mile 

Plaza on their new sign. They also have a sub-committee formed to explore ramifications of the 

upcoming recreational marijuana laws. 

 

Delaney reported Birmingham Next had a successful Octoberfest event at Beverly Park. 

 

Oen expressed his continued prayers for DPW Team Supervisor Marty Collins, who was recently 

hospitalized.  

 

Peddie reminded residents to be mindful of what goes into their recycling bins, and advised them 

to look on the SOCRRA website if they are not sure. 

 

  Motion by Oen, second by Abboud, to adjourn the meeting at 8:18 p.m.  

 

 Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 John Mooney   Chris Wilson   Elizabeth M. Lyons 

Council President  Village Clerk   Recording Secretary 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL.  THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE 

VILLAGE COUNCIL. 



TO THE PRESIDENT & MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL.   THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF

EXPENDITURES FOR APPROVAL.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RUN FROM 9/17/2018 THROUGH 10/1/2018.

ACCOUNT TOTALS:

101 GENERAL FUND $211,292.65

202 MAJOR ROAD FUND $137,108.75

203 LOCAL STREET FUND $17,167.46

205 PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT FUND $77,407.77

592 WATER & SEWER FUND $139,380.79

701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND $3,300.00

 TOTAL $585,657.42

MANUAL CHECKS- COMERICA $0.00

MANUAL CHECKS- INDEPENDENT $93.75
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $585,657.42
 

GRAND TOTAL $585,751.17



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/2Page: 09/27/2018 02:24 PM
User: KARRIE
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2018 - 10/01/2018

AmountInvoice VendorVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank COM COMERICA

300.00 4-EVER-WATER 4-EVER-WATER 5934479088COM10/01/2018
95.00 ADVANCED LIGHTING AND SOUNDADVANCED LIGHTING AND SOUND5094979089COM10/01/2018
165.00 AERO FILTER, INC.AERO FILTER, INC.5353679090COM10/01/2018
100.00 AIMEE ALLORAIMEE ALLOR5989479091COM10/01/2018
290.00 ALLIANCE MOBILE HEALTHALLIANCE MOBILE HEALTH5116079092COM10/01/2018
37.18 APPLIED IMAGINGAPPLIED IMAGING5328479093COM10/01/2018
127.23 ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.5180279094COM10/01/2018
169.50 BELLE TIREBELLE TIRE3092079095COM10/01/2018
503.47 BELSON OUTDOORS, INC. BELSON OUTDOORS, INC. 5896779096COM10/01/2018
100.00 BENJAMIN MCKINNEYBENJAMIN MCKINNEY5890679097COM10/01/2018
72.15 BEVERLY HILLS ACEBEVERLY HILLS ACE5140979098COM10/01/2018

100,000.00 BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARDBIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD3406379099COM10/01/2018
37,792.50 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELDBLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD5207179100COM10/01/2018

100.00 BRIAN TULLEYBRIAN TULLEY5975779101COM10/01/2018
72.00 C&G PUBLISHINGC&G PUBLISHING4998079102COM10/01/2018

1,502.92 CADILLAC ASPHALT, LLCCADILLAC ASPHALT, LLC5895979103COM10/01/2018
10,970.55 CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INCCANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC5977979104COM10/01/2018
1,000.00 CAPTIVATING HOMESCAPTIVATING HOMES5988779105COM10/01/2018

128.04 CATHY WHITECATHY WHITE5859779106COM10/01/2018
300.00 CHARLES W. JACKSONCHARLES W. JACKSON5063479107COM10/01/2018
100.00 CHERYL KAECHLECHERYL KAECHLE5989179108COM10/01/2018
22.90 CINTAS CORPORATION #31CINTAS CORPORATION #315934779109COM10/01/2018

21,330.62 COALITION OF PUBLIC SAFETYCOALITION OF PUBLIC SAFETY3192579110COM10/01/2018
21,282.97 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450079111COM10/01/2018

99.84 CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMERS ENERGY5082679112COM10/01/2018
100.00 DONELLE BURATTODONELLE BURATTO5989079113COM10/01/2018
156.96 ERIN LAPEREERIN LAPERE5989779114COM10/01/2018
336.68 EXXONMOBILEXXONMOBIL3122879115COM10/01/2018
178.40 FEDEX OFFICEFEDEX OFFICE5972179116COM10/01/2018

2,671.00 FOREMAN CONSTRUCTIONFOREMAN CONSTRUCTION5947079117COM10/01/2018
3,482.00 G&M ENTERPRISES, LTD.G&M ENTERPRISES, LTD.5879579118COM10/01/2018

600.00 GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SVCS.GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SVCS.5348979119COM10/01/2018
145,557.65 GREAT LAKES CONTRACTING SOLUTIONS, GREAT LAKES CONTRACTING SOLUTIONS, 5989979120COM10/01/2018

100.00 GREGORY MACKENZIEGREGORY MACKENZIE5961379121COM10/01/2018
1,215.00 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRYJ.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY3907079122COM10/01/2018

450.00 JAMES HEALYJAMES HEALY5942379123COM10/01/2018
300.00 JENNIFER MOOREJENNIFER MOORE5989379124COM10/01/2018
300.00 JOANNA MCKINNEYJOANNA MCKINNEY5958379125COM10/01/2018
55.16 JOHN MOONEYJOHN MOONEY5118679126COM10/01/2018

8,713.00 JOHNSON THERMOL-TEMP INC.JOHNSON THERMOL-TEMP INC.5958279127COM10/01/2018
V85.96 JRC SUPPLY, INC.JRC SUPPLY, INC.5965679128COM10/01/2018
V100.00 JULIE HAND JULIE HAND 5918579129COM10/01/2018

85.96 JRC SUPPLY, INC.JRC SUPPLY, INC.5965679130COM10/01/2018
100.00 JULIE HAND JULIE HAND 5918579131COM10/01/2018
251.88 MAINS LANDSCAPE SUPPLYMAINS LANDSCAPE SUPPLY4949179132COM10/01/2018
100.00 MAYA RICHARDSONMAYA RICHARDSON5989679133COM10/01/2018
135.36 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUEMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE5961479134COM10/01/2018
720.92 MICRO CENTER A/RMICRO CENTER A/R5140879135COM10/01/2018
467.00 MUNICIPAL WEB SERVICESMUNICIPAL WEB SERVICES5146179136COM10/01/2018
605.00 NEXT NEXT 5911279137COM10/01/2018

4,000.00 NYHARTNYHART5953379138COM10/01/2018
200.00 NYLU VELLANKINYLU VELLANKI5948279139COM10/01/2018
99.93 O'REILLY AUTO PARTSO'REILLY AUTO PARTS5154079140COM10/01/2018
750.00 OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE/CRESTOAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE/CREST5973579141COM10/01/2018

135,975.79 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'SOAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'S5083079142COM10/01/2018
192.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERSOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS5329879143COM10/01/2018
277.99 OFFICE EXPRESSOFFICE EXPRESS4976979144COM10/01/2018
700.00 PARK PLACE BUILDING CO.PARK PLACE BUILDING CO.5988879145COM10/01/2018
180.00 PITNEY BOWES CREDIT CORP.PITNEY BOWES CREDIT CORP.5050279146COM10/01/2018

13,500.00 R.S. CONTRACTING INC.R.S. CONTRACTING INC.5026179147COM10/01/2018
2,774.16 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLANDROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND1610079148COM10/01/2018

596.30 ROBERT STEMPIENROBERT STEMPIEN5989879149COM10/01/2018
28,575.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.S.O.C.R.R.A.1650079150COM10/01/2018
28,433.50 SAFEBUILT INC. SAFEBUILT INC. 5928279151COM10/01/2018

300.00 SANDRA CIBULASSANDRA CIBULAS5989279152COM10/01/2018
200.00 SMITH'S WATERPROOFINGSMITH'S WATERPROOFING5950379153COM10/01/2018

1,572.28 SOUTHFIELD MUFFLER & BRAKESOUTHFIELD MUFFLER & BRAKE5135679154COM10/01/2018
200.00 SUSAN FEZZEYSUSAN FEZZEY5988979155COM10/01/2018
200.00 SUSAN WAUN SUSAN WAUN 5927579156COM10/01/2018
850.00 SUZANNE CORYSUZANNE CORY5990079157COM10/01/2018
60.00 TECHRADIUM, INC.TECHRADIUM, INC.5212379158COM10/01/2018
300.00 THOMAS JORDANTHOMAS JORDAN5989579159COM10/01/2018
100.00 TROY STEWARTTROY STEWART5349579160COM10/01/2018
29.27 VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZON WIRELESS5076779161COM10/01/2018
474.81 VERIZON WIRELESS MESSAGINGVERIZON WIRELESS MESSAGING3820579162COM10/01/2018
200.00 WALLSIDE WINDOWS WALLSIDE WINDOWS 5935779163COM10/01/2018
500.00 WECHSLER CONSTRUCTIONWECHSLER CONSTRUCTION5965979164COM10/01/2018
572.55 WOW! BUSINESSWOW! BUSINESS5357279165COM10/01/2018



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 2/2Page: 09/27/2018 02:24 PM
User: KARRIE
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2018 - 10/01/2018

AmountInvoice VendorVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

500.00 YES HOME SERVICES YES HOME SERVICES 5935679166COM10/01/2018

COM TOTALS:

585,657.42 Total of 77 Disbursements:

185.96 Less 2 Void Checks:
585,843.38 Total of 79 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/1Page: 09/27/2018 02:26 PM
User: KARRIE
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 09/27/2018 - 10/01/2018

AmountInvoice VendorVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank IND INDEPENDENT BANK

93.75 RENTAL WORLD308991064IND09/27/2018

IND TOTALS:

93.75 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
93.75 Total of 1 Checks:



MEMO 
 
To: Honorable President Mooney; Village Council 
 Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

From: Erin Saur, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date: September 25, 2018 

Re: Proposed playground and sports court at Detroit Country Day Middle School 
 
Detroit Country Day School has submitted plans to modify the previously approved Middle School site 
plan to add a play structure and sports court to the grounds. The property is zoned R-1 and schools are 
allowed as a special use in that district. Per Section 22.14.030 f., private school related accessory uses 
and accessory structures, such as:  auditoriums, athletic and recreational facilities, and similar uses are 
required to obtain approval and each use or structure shall be subject to a separate special approval. 
The project requires site plan review and special land use approval. Per Village Ordinance, Council must 
first refer the proposal to the Planning Commission for a public hearing and recommendation after 
which Council will have the opportunity to review and consider approval of the proposal. 
 
The plans submitted detail a playground to be located south of the existing softball diamond and a sport 
court south of the emergency access road on the western side of the middle school building expansion.  
 
Suggested Motion 
Village Council refers plans submitted by Detroit Country Day School to the Planning Commission for 
public hearing and recommendation on a proposed site plan and special land use.   
 
ees 



 

 

Beverly Hills Department of Public Safety 

Memo 

To: Village Finance Director Sheila McCarthy  
From: Deputy Director Howard Shock  
Date: September 27, 2018 
Re: Patrol Vehicle Equipment 

Background: 

The Village Council approved the purchase of a 2018 Chevy Tahoe to be used by the 
Public Safety Department’s Patrol Division.  The vehicle replaced a 2013 Chevy Tahoe 
which reached the end of its use as recommended by the Michigan Municipal Risk 
Management Authority.  Concurrent with this new vehicle purchase comes the transfer 
of specialized equipment from the old to the new vehicle.   

The Public Safety Department sought proposals from Cynergy Wireless and Canfield 
Equipment Service to transfer the equipment from the 2013 Chevy to the 2018 Chevy.  
Some equipment needed to be replaced due to wear and the newer 2018 body style. 
Both companies were competitive in their bid process.  It is the staff recommendation 
that Village Council award the service agreement to Canfield Equipment Service, Inc.   

Suggested Motion: 

Be it resolved that the Beverly Hills Village Council awards the contract for the 
equipment transfer and upgrade of the 2018 Chevy Tahoe to Canfield Equipment 
Service. Including payment on invoice #263944 in the amount of $10,006.53 and 
invoice #264007 in the amount of $399.02 for the repair and replacement of equipment 
in patrol vehicle 305. Funding for the purchase is available in Police Vehicle Equipment 
Purchases, Account 205-900-980.02. 













M E M O 
 

 

To: Chris Wilson, Village Manager  

Village Council 

  

From: Sheila McCarthy, Finance Director 

 

Re: Johnson Thermol-Temp Inc. Invoice 

 

Date: September 27, 2018 

 

 

Background 
At the February 20, 2018 Council meeting, administration reported that after a full inspection, the 

heating and cooling system in the Public Safety Building posed a risk of failure or need of costly 

service updates. 

 

On September 13 and 14, 2018, it became necessary for Public Safety to contact Johnson Thermol-

Temp Inc., located at 58540 VanDyke, Washington, MI, for an emergency repair to the cooling 

system. They were able to inspect, locate, and repair the leak. 

 

Per Village Charter Chapter 8, Section 8.7; The Council shall have the authority to make 

emergency appropriations from general fund surpluses to meet urgent and immediate needs at 

any time during the budget year within outlined Charter limits. This invoice falls within those 

guidelines. 

 

Recommendation 

Administration recommends approving payment to Johnson Thermol-Temp Inc., located at 58540 

VanDyke, Washington, MI, for Invoice S5A8J5-9, for a total of $8,438.00. Funds for this 

expenditure are available for this in account #205-345-934.00 

 

Suggested Resolution 

Be it resolved that the Village of Beverly Hills Council authorize the payment of Invoice 

S5A8J5-9 from Johnson Thermol-Temp Inc. in the amount of $8,438.00.  Funds are available for 

this purchase in account #205-345-934.00. 

 

eml 





M E M O 

 

 

To: Council Members Delaney, Abboud, and Peddie 

 

From: Elizabeth Lyons, Administrative Support 

 

Re: Birmingham Area Cable Board Vacancy 

 

Date: September 27, 2018 

 

 

This memo is to inform you that you have been appointed as the subcommittee to make a 

recommendation to fill the vacancy on the Birmingham Area Cable Board. The expiration of 

this term is June 30, 2020.  

 

Your committee will be meeting at The Village Council Room, at 7:15 p.m., prior to the Council 

meeting.  

 

We have received one application; Sara Bresnahan.  The applicant has been notified of the 

subcommittee meeting. 

 

eml 

 

 



Memo 

 
To:  Chris Wilson, Village Manager  

From:  Thomas Meszler, Director of Public Services 

Date:  September 27, 2018 

Re:  Bid Recommendation for 2018 Road Improvement Program (14 Mile Rd. from west of 
Lahser to west Village limits) 

 
Background 
The Village received bids for reconstruction of 14 Mile Rd. from west of Lahser to the west 
Village limits on Sept. 20, 2018 at 11:00AM (bid tabulation is attached). The bid also included 
work, identified as Division 2 in the bid, in Westwood Commons Sub with Westwood Commons 
paying the Village for the work performed in the subdivision. There were three bidders for this 
project ranging from a high bid of $371,655.35 to a low bid of $339,180.50 for all work (14 Mile 
reconstruction and Westwood Commons). After the bids were taken Westwood Commons Board 
decided not to utilize the bids submitted to the Village and to do the work themselves leaving the 
low bid cost to the Village for 14 Mile Rd. reconstruction at $301,055.50. This bid was 
submitted by Asphalt Specialist, Inc. who have done work in the Village before and are an 
approved contractor with the Village. After talking to the Contractor, it was agreed that the 
project would be started in the Spring of 2019 considering the lateness of the season and 
possibility that the job may not get finished if started this fall. 
 
Recommendation 
Administration recommends that Village of Beverly Hills award this project to Asphalt 
Specialist, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Be it resolved that the Beverly Hills Village Council award the 2018 Road Improvement 
Program to Asphalt Specialist, Inc. for the reconstruction of 14 Mile Rd. from west of Lahser to 
the west Village limits in the amount of $301,055.50 and authorize the Village Manager to sign 
the contracts. 
 
 
THM/klm 
 
attachments 
 
 
 



BID TABULATION Bids Due:  Thursday, September 20, 2018 at 11:00 a.m.

2018 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM HRC Job # 20180073

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS

OAKLAND COUNTY

Asphalt Specialists, Inc. Cadillac Asphalt, LLC Pro-Line Asphalt Paving Corp.

1780 Highwood 39255 Country Club Drive 11797 29 Mile Road

Pontiac, MI | (248) 334-4570 Farmington Hills, MI | (248) 620-7955 Washington, MI | (586)752-7730

Item Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

DIVISION NO 1 - OPTION NO. 2 (SPRING 2018 CONSTRUCTION)

1. Mobilization $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $27,900.00 $27,900.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00

2. Color Audio-Video Route Survey' $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,385.00 $2,385.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

3. HMA Surface Rem 5,993 syd $5.00 $29,965.00 $9.00 $53,937.00 $3.30 $19,776.90

4. Station Grading , Mod 1.9 sta $10,000.00 $19,000.00 $1,300.00 $2,470.00 $11,000.00 $20,900.00

5. HMA. 4E10 825 ton $125.00 $103,125.00 $115.00 $94,875.00 $100.00 $82,500.00

6. HMA, 5E10 495 ton $140.00 $69,300.00 $133.00 $65,835.00 $117.00 $57,915.00

7. Butt Joint 371 1ft $4.00 $1,484.00 $14.00 $5,194.00 $12.00 $4,452.00

8. Underdrain, 6-inch, Special 866 1ft $14.00 $12,124.00 $24.00 $20,784.00 $20.00 $17,320.00

9. Sewer tap, 6 inch 4 ea $50.00 $200.00 $50.00 $200.00 $300.00 $1,200.00

10. Structure, Adjust (As Needed) 7 ea $400.00 $2,800.00 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $650.00 $4,550.00

11. Sanitary Structure, Adjust (As Needed) 2 ea $400.00 $800.00 $1,400.00 $2,800.00 $850.00 $1,700.00

12. Subgrade Undercutting, Type II, Special (As Needed) 185 cyd $25.00 $4,625.00 $19.00 $3,515.00 $50.00 $9,250.00

13. 1" x 3" Crushed Concrete, Special (As Needed) 100 ton $30.00 $3,000.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $50.00 $5,000.00

14. Large Aperture Geogrid (As Needed) 550 syd $5.00 $2,750.00 $9.00 $4,950.00 $6.00 $3,300.00

15. 21AA Aggregate, Special (As Needed) 75 ton $30.00 $2,250.00 $25.00 $1,875.00 $50.00 $3,750.00

16. Pavt Mrkg, Waterborne, 4 inch,Yellow 1,520 1ft $0.75 $1,140.00 $0.35 $532.00 $0.35 $532.00

17. Pavt Mrkg, Waterborne, 2nd Application, 4 inch, Yellow 1,520 1ft $0.75 $1,140.00 $0.22 $334.40 $0.25 $380.00

18. Pavt Mrkg, Waterborne, 4 inch, White 3,235 1ft $0.75 $2,426.25 $0.35 $1,132.25 $0.35 $1,132.25

19. Pavt Mrkg, Waterborne, 2nd Application, 4 inch, White 3,235 1ft $0.75 $2,426.25 $0.22 $711.70 $0.25 $808.75

20. Maintenance Gravel (As Needed) 200 ton $5.00 $1,000.00 $25.00 $5,000.00 $35.00 $7,000.00

21. Site Restoration $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

22. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

23. Maintaining Traffic $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00

24. Observation Crew Days $700.00 $10,500.00 $700.00 $9,800.00 $700.00 $17,500.00

Subtotal Amoun of Base Bid (Option No. 2) $301,055.50 $321,730.35 $315,966.90

ALTERNATE NO. 1

1. HMA, 4C, MOD 825 ton $120.00 $99,000.00 $130.00 $107,250.00 $110.00 $90,750.00

2. HMA, 3C, MOD 495 ton $135.00 $66,825.00 $112.00 $55,440.00 $140.00 $69,300.00

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Y:\201800\20180073\04_Design\Final\Bidding\Bid_Docs\20180073_SpringConst_BidTab.xls Page 1



BID TABULATION Bids Due:  Thursday, September 20, 2018 at 11:00 a.m.

2018 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM HRC Job # 20180073

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS

OAKLAND COUNTY

Asphalt Specialists, Inc. Cadillac Asphalt, LLC Pro-Line Asphalt Paving Corp.

1780 Highwood 39255 Country Club Drive 11797 29 Mile Road

Pontiac, MI | (248) 334-4570 Farmington Hills, MI | (248) 620-7955 Washington, MI | (586)752-7730

Item Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

1. Mobilization $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $9,125.00 $9,125.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

2. Color Audio-Video Route Survey $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

3. HMA Surface Rem 160 syd $25.00 $4,000.00 $20.00 $3,200.00 $20.00 $3,200.00

4. Curb and Gutter, Rem 156 ft $10.00 $1,560.00 $25.00 $3,900.00 $20.00 $3,120.00

5. Driveway Opening, Conc.Det M 61 ft $40.00 $2,440.00 $30.00 $1,830.00 $35.00 $2,135.00

6. Curb and Gutter, Det F2 95 ft $40.00 $3,800.00 $25.00 $2,375.00 $30.00 $2,850.00

7. Dr. Structure Adj. 7 ea $600.00 $4,200.00 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $750.00 $5,250.00

8. Dr. Structur Reconst 1 ea $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

9. Dr. Structure Cover, EJ 5000 Type MI 1 ea $550.00 $550.00 $900.00 $900.00 $900.00 $900.00

10. Aggregate, 21AA, Special (As Needed) 65 ton $35.00 $2,275.00 $25.00 $1,625.00 $60.00 $3,900.00

11. HMA, 1100T 20 ton $150.00 $3,000.00 $225.00 $4,500.00 * $350.00 $7,000.00

12. HMA, 1100L 20 ton $150.00 $3,000.00 $178.00 $3,560.00 * $300.00 $6,000.00

13. Butt Joint 40 1ft $20.00 $800.00 $14.00 $560.00 $30.00 $1,200.00

14. Site Restoration $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

15. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control $500.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

16. Maintaining Traffic $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

17. Observation Crew Days $700.00 $3,500.00 $700.00 $3,850.00 $700.00 $7,000.00

Subtotal - Division No. 2 - Option No. 2 $38,125.00 $49,925.00 * $66,055.00 *

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BID $339,180.50 $371,655.35 * $382,021.90 *

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

DIVISION NO. 2 - WESTWOOD COMMONS

OPTION NO. 2 (SPRING 2018 CONSTRUCTION)

Y:\201800\20180073\04_Design\Final\Bidding\Bid_Docs\20180073_SpringConst_BidTab.xls Page 2



 

   

Memorandum 

To: Honorable President Mooney; Village Council 

From: Chris D. Wilson, Village Manager 

CC: Tom Ryan, Village Attorney; Tom Meszler, Public Services Director 

Date: 9/28/2018 

Re: MDEQ Lead and Copper Rule Revisions 

The Great Lakes Water Authority (GLWA), the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department 
(DWSD) and the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner (WRC) have filed a Request 
for Declaratory Ruling with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) to 
challenge the validity of the MDEQ’s Lead and Copper Rules.  A copy of the Request for 
Declaratory Ruling is attached.   The request is quite thorough and identifies almost 30 statutory 
and legal defects in the MDEQ’s revised Lead and Copper Rules.   

GLWA requested all first and second tier customers submit a Concurrence Form to the 
MDEQ by the end of September.  At their meeting of September 12th, the SOCWA Board 
approved a similar Concurrence Form.  SOCWA has requested that all member 
communities and Bloomfield Hills and Bloomfield Township also separately approve their 
own Concurrence Form.   

I have asked Mr. Ryan to review this request and comment on its appropriateness for 
Village consideration.  Mr. Ryan has reviewed the Request and recommended that it be 
placed before the Council for consideration and that the Concurrence Form be approved.  
Village Administration has also reviewed this Request and discussed the matter with 
SOCWA officials and recommends approval.   

The Village, SOCWA, WRC, and the GLWA are all committed to Lead and Copper rules that 
protect the pubic water supply.  However, we do not feel that the revisions passed by the 
MDEQ are compliant with current state statues and will not, as written, serve this purpose.  
We are hopeful that MDEQ will work with local communities and water suppliers on Lead 
and Copper Rules that are legally enforceable and serve the greater public good.   

 

Suggested Motion: “That the Village of Beverly Hills Council approve and authorizes 
the Village Manager to sign the Concurrence Form relative to the Request for 
Declaratory Ruling filed by the Great Lakes Water Authority, the Detroit Water and 
Sewerage Department and the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner.”   



 
CONCURRENCE WITH  

PETITIONERS’ REQUEST FOR DECLARATORY RULING 
Re: MDEQ’s Lead and Copper Rules 

 
NAME OF GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 
      

STREET ADDRESS 
      

CITY 
      

STATE 
      

ZIP CODE 
      

TELEPHONE NO. 
(   )    -     

E-MAIL ADDRESS 
      
On June 14, 2018, the MDEQ filed the MDEQ Lead and Copper Rules (“LCRs”) with the Secretary of State.  
On August 13, 2018, the Great Lakes Water Authority, Detroit Water and Sewerage Department and the Oakland County Water 
Resource Commissioner (the “Petitioners”) timely filed their Request for Declaratory Ruling, pursuant to 2003 MR 2, R 324.81. 
The Petitioners challenged the validity of the LCRs, asserting that the LCRs exceed the scope of the MDEQ’s authority under 
state law and are arbitrary and capricious.  
The above stated governmental entity has reviewed the Petitioners’ Request for Declaratory Relief and incorporates it by 
reference and concurs in its Relief Requested. 
 Indicate below whether the request relates to a Statute, Administrative Rule, or an Order administered by the 
Department. 

 Part       of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, MCL 324.101 et seq. 
 Part       of the Public Health Code, 1978 PA 368, as amended, MCL 333.1101 et seq. 
 Other statute:        
 Administrative Rule, R 325.10102-.11606  Title:  Supplying Water to the Public (Lead and Copper Rules)  
 Order No.                  ; Title       

 
Please state the specific question or request to be addressed:  The above stated governmental entity concurs in the 
Petitioners’ request that:  
(1) the MDEQ issue a declaratory ruling finding that key provisions of the LCRs exceed the MDEQ’s authority under the 
Michigan Safe Drinking Water Act (“MSDWA”), and are arbitrary and capricious, and  
(2) the MDEQ issue a declaratory ruling finding that the rulemaking record for the LCRs, Regulatory Impact Statement and 
Cost Benefit Analysis are incomplete, deficient and fail to provide the necessary legal support and foundation for the LCRs.  

Please state the actual uncontested facts, including your status as an interested person or your standing to request a 
declaratory ruling: 
Like the Petitioners, the above stated governmental entity is a supplier of water, as defined under the MSDWA, and thus has a 
direct interest in the scope and applicability of the LCRs and has standing to challenge the validity of the LCRs.  
As described in the Petitioners’ Request for Declaratory Ruling, the LCRs impose a myriad of new and additional regulatory, 
technical and cost burdens on suppliers of water.  
As such, the above stated governmental entity incorporates by reference the statements and allegations made in the Request 
for Declaratory Relief. Further, the above stated governmental entity concurs in the Petitioners’ Relief Requested in the 
Request for Declaratory Ruling.  

(Additional pages, maps, drawings, etc., may be attached) 

TITLE IF SIGNING FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 
      

NAME OF GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 
      

SIGNATURE DATE 
      

Submit this Concurrence with Petitioners’ Request for Declaratory Ruling and attachments to: 
EXECUTIVE DIVISION 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
525 WEST ALLEGAN STREET 
LANSING, MI 48933 













































MEMO 
 
To: Honorable President Mooney; Village Council 

Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

From: Erin Saur, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date: September 27, 2018 

Re: Proposed renovations to Woodside Athletic Club, 22440 W Thirteen Mile Road 
 
Woodside Athletic Club, 22440 W Thirteen Mile Road, has submitted a proposal for site plan review and 
special land use approval. The proposed changes include a new play structure north of the existing pool, 
relocating the existing kiddie pool, improvements to the patio and outside grill area including 
landscaping and ADA upgrades, and a new court on the east side of the property. The property is zoned 
R-1, Single Family Residential and as a private club the use is permitted by special land use approval. Per 
Section 22.08.300 j, any modifications to a site plan after approval requires a new special land use 
approval.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on Wednesday, September 26, 2018 regarding the 
special land use in accordance with Section 22.08.300. At that meeting they recommended approval of 
the special land use contingent upon approval of the site plan.  The Planning Commission also 
recommended approval of the site plan with the following conditions:  

- Temporary dumpster be emptied no earlier than 8:00 am, 
- Fence south of walkway on sheet C-105 be modified to a compliant fence, and 
- Sidewalk be installed along 13 Mile frontage per Section 22.08.410. 

 
For all projects that require site plan approval, Village Ordinance requires a sidewalk to be installed 
along the perimeter of the lot that abuts a major, intermediate, or collector street. The site plan, as 
submitted, does not include the installation of sidewalk. The Planning Commission recommended that 
requirement be met for site plan approval; however they noted there is opportunity for the applicant to 
explore options with Administration and Village Council to assist in the efforts to connect the sidewalk in 
this area. Alternatively, the applicant could seek a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals if they 
believe there are practical difficulties unique to their site that would limit their ability to comply with 
that standard.  
 
Procedurally, the site plan and the special land use are separate approvals but both are required for the 
project to proceed. The special land use requires a public hearing to be held. The first available date for 
a public hearing is November 6, 2018 for the Village Council to receive comments on the special land use 
request from Woodside Athletic Club.  
 
Suggested Motion 
Village Council sets a public hearing date of Tuesday, November 6, 2018 to receive comments on the 
special land use request submitted by Woodside Athletic Club, 22440 W Thirteen Mile Road.   
 
ees 



 
 

VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 
CHRIS D. WILSON 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2018 
 

 

 

FY 2017-18 Audit – As a reminder, the auditors will be present at the meeting of October 16th for 
a formal presentation of the Villages audit for Fiscal Year 2017-18.  Village Administration has 
been meeting with the auditors for the last few weeks to prepare for formal report and 
presentation.   

 

Fire Apparatus – An update on the two new fire trucks:  The mini-pumper is in the construction 
phase.  Alexis has sent the Village some photos of the progress to date.  I have included a couple 
of photos for your review.  Photos are also available on-line at www.alexisfire.com/in-progress-
trucks/.   Completion and delivery for this vehicle is scheduled for late November.  Prior to delivery, 
Public Safety staff will make a visit to the factory for a final inspection with the manufacturer to 
make sure all equipment meets specifications and functions properly.     

The larger pumper truck is in the final modifications stage.  Public Safety Administration sent 
some final minor modifications to Sutphen at the end of September.  The chassis for this vehicle 
is scheduled for delivery in October.  Completion and delivery of this vehicle is scheduled for late 
January.   

 

Buckthorn Eradication Bid Opening – The Village had a bid opening for our buckthorn 
eradication bids on Friday, September 28th at 10:00.  Bids were not opened in time to allow for 
consideration of a recommended bid to be placed on this agenda.  Village Administration is in the 
process of reviewing the submitted bids and I will update Council and the Parks and Recreation 
Board.   

 

Clerk Position – The Village has been taking applications for the position of Village Clerk 
throughout the month of September.  I am in the process of reviewing these applications and will 
be scheduling interviews with qualified applicants next week.  As the Village Charter requires the 
Clerk position to be appointed by the Council I will be coordinating and consulting with the 
Personnel Committee throughout this process.    

 

 

http://www.alexisfire.com/in-progress-trucks/
http://www.alexisfire.com/in-progress-trucks/






Village of Beverly Hills      Municipal Building  
Regular Council Meeting            18500 W. Thirteen Mile Rd.  
Tuesday, October 2, 2018      7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 

a. Beverly Hills Department of Public Safety Activity Report for the period September 13– 
September 27, 2018. 

 
b. Minutes from Planning Commission date August 22, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Beverly Hills Public Safety Activity Report 

September 13th – 27th,  2018 

 The Public Safety Department is currently looking for applicants for Public Safety Officer.  Please 

visit our website, www.beverlyhillspolice.com to see if you qualify. 

 Please, be advised there are several scams in the area again.  Some are as simple as someone 

coming to the house and fixing your roof. Or someone promising to paint your garage.  Do not 

give them money in advance have them give you references and names first. Check them out before 

you give them money.  It is difficult to convince the prosecutor to give us a warrant on a criminal 

matter when you voluntarily gave money to someone you don’t know. Scams happen over the 

phone with people calling to say they are with the Government and they want you to post bond for 

a family member.  Please, when in doubt call the Public Safety Department before you give money 

to anyone.  The scammers are very smooth and often prey on the elderly.  If you know of an elderly 

person who lives in your neighborhood and may be a victim of a scam please call us.  Some elderly 

people are very embarrassed and will not tell anyone of the scam.  However, they may tell you.   

 Beverly Hills Public Safety reminds everyone we do have a safe zone to exchange merchandise 

here at the parking lot which is monitored 24/7 days a week.  You can even go inside and ask the 

Sgt who can help with the exchange. 

 PSO Moore is available to ensure child safety seats are properly installed in your car.    

 

PUBLIC SAFETY OPERATIONS 

  226 Calls for Service. 

  14 Arrests. 

 158 Tickets issued. 

 Motor Carrier Enforcement. 

 1 Walk in PBTs.  

 6 Prescription pill drop offs. 

 Vacation checks. 

 Car Seat checks and presentation at Our Lady Queen of Martyrs. 

 Gun Permit. 

 5 Prisoner transports to and from the Birmingham Police Department. 

 Crossing Guard on Beverly 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 4 Motorist Assists on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Medical on 14 Mile Rd. 

 2 Medicals on 13 Mile Rd. 

 2 Suspicious Persons complaints on Southfield Rd. 

 Vehicle Lockout on Southfield Rd. 

 Citizen Assist on Southfield. 

 Noise complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Crossing Guard on Beverly Rd. 

file:///C:/Users/bvshockh/Desktop/Activity%20Report/www.beverlyhillspolice.com


 Traffic Accident on Southfield. 

 Traffic Accident on Greenfield. 

 3 Traffic Accidents on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Traffic Accident on Lahser. 

 Suspicious Vehicle complaint on 14 Mile Rd. 

 Alarm on Evergreen. 

 Down Wires on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Family Trouble on Sheridan. 

 Reckless Driving complaint on Southfield. 

 Citizen Assist on Beechwood. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Dunblaine. 

 Motorist Assist on Kirkshire. 

 Accident on Beverly. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on Greenfield for defective equipment.  Officers suspected the driver 

was operating while intoxicated.  The driver was found in possession of marijuana without a 

medical card.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Fire Alarm on Waltham. 

 Welfare Check on Kinross. 

 Fraud on Riverside. 

 Officers met Southfield Police to pick up an individual held on a Beverly Hills Warrant.  The 

individual was arrested without incident. 

 Suspicious Persons on Georgetown. 

 Traffic complaint on Eastlady. 

 Traffic Accident on Locherbie. 

 Traffic complaint on Buckingham. 

 Traffic complaint on Wetherby. 

 Odor Investigation on Pickwick. 

 Animal complaint on Sunset. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Southfield. 

 Civil Matter on Sheridan. 

 Alarm on Lost Hollow. 

 Medical on Dover. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on 13 Mile for a traffic violation.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Hang Up 911 on Robinhood. 

 Suspicious Vehicle on Foxboro Way. 

 Suspicious Persons on Lahser. 

 Assist Berkley Police searching for a missing person. 

 Medical on Inglewood. 

 Alarm on Lahser. 

 Damage to Property on Saxon. 

 Damage to Property on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Civil Dispute on Southfield Rd. 

 Medical on Kinross. 



 Alarm on Village. 

 Medical on Beverly Ct. 

 Medical on Madoline. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Riverside. 

 Officers received a complaint of an intoxicated driver.  Officers located the driver on Southfield 

Road.  The driver was suspected of operating while intoxicated.  The driver was arrested without 

incident. 

 Assist Royal Oak Police with a traffic accident on Greenfield. 

 Larceny complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Fraud complaint on Robinhood 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Riverside. 

 Traffic complaint on Riverside. 

 Medical on Corsaut Lane. 

 Alarm on Coryell. 

 Alarm on Crimson Crossing Ct. 

 Assist Birmingham Police with an Alarm. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Kirkshire. 

 Motorist Assist on Lahser. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Orchard Way. 

 Alarm on Orchard Way. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Riverside. 

 Alarm on Hampstead Ct. 

 Welfare Check on Wentworth. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on Pierce for a traffic violation.  The driver was suspected of operating 

while intoxicated.  The driver was arrested for open toxicants and carry a concealed weapon 

without a permit.  He was arrested without incident. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle for a traffic violation on Evergreen.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle for a traffic violation on Evergreen.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Citizen Assist on Blossom. 

 Motorist Assist on Southfield. 

 Motorist Assist on Riverview. 

 Traffic Accident on Lahser. 

 Motorist Assist on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Car Seat Check. 

 Traffic Investigation on Southfield. 

 Juvenile complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on Southfield for a traffic violation.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license.  The driver was in possession of marijuana without a medical card. The driver 

was arrested without incident. 

 Medical on Evergreen. 

 Animal complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Animal complaint on Camelot. 



 Lift Assist on Wentworth. 

 Ordinance Violation on Arlington 

 Odor Investigation on Evergreen. 

 Noise complaint on Norwood. 

 Suspicious Vehicle complaint on E. Bellvine Trail. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle for a traffic violation on Lahser.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license and had several warrants for his arrest.  The driver was arrested without 

incident.  

 Civil Matter on Buckingham. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on Southfield for a traffic violation.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license and had a warrant for her arrest.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Animal complaint on E. Bellvine Trail. 

 Animal complaint on Southfield. 

 Odor Investigation on Buckingham. 

 Suspicious Vehicle complaint on Hillcrest. 

 Traffic complaint on Lahser. 

 Civil Matter on Kirkshire. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Wentworth. 

 Alarm on Sheridan. 

 Suspicious Circumstance complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on 14 Mile for a traffic violation.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Suspicious Circumstance complaint on Riverside. 

 Medical on Wilshire. 

 Traffic Accident on Faircrest. 

 Alarm on Warwick. 

 Parking complaint on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Medical on Kinross. 

 Suspicious Circumstance complaint on Nixon. 

 Solicitor complaint on Cobblestone. 

 Solicitor complaint on Old Coach. 

 Officers responded to a hit and run accident on Pierce.  Officers located the driver and suspected 

he was operating while intoxicated.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Suspicious Persons complaint on Birwood. 

 Medical on Kinross. 

 Alarm on Georgetown. 

 Vehicle Impound on 13 Mile Rd. 

 Motorist Assist on Southfield. 

 Found Property on 14 Mile Rd. 

 Officers stopped a vehicle on Greenfield for a traffic violation.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license and had a warrant for her arrest.  The driver was operating on a suspended 

license. 

 Road hazard on 13 Mile Rd. 



 Officers stopped a vehicle on Southfield for a traffic violation.  The driver was operating on a 

suspended license.  The driver was arrested without incident. 

 Alarm on Kennoway Ct. 

 

INVESTIGATIONS BUREAU 

 Reviewed 226 Cases. 

 Provide event security for Groves dance and football game. 

 Fire Training at Crest-MABIS. 

 CCW warrant received. 

 Hazmat training completed. 

 Dealing with mental disorders training completed. 

 Liaison attended Groves football. 

 Liaison attended Groves dance. 

 Liaison investigate MIP at Groves dance. 

 Liaison attended BYA meeting. 

 OWI warrant received. 

 2 interviews with fraud victims. 

 OWI arraignment. 

 Cell phone search warrant for PWID. 

 OWI blood back-ticket issued. 

 2 court transports 

 

FIRE PREVENTION BUREAU 

 Monthly MABAS meeting 

 10 officers went through MABAS fire training at Oakland Community College Crest Center with 

Huntington Woods and Berkley. 

 HazMat Awareness Training. 

 Assist Bloomfield Hills with fire inspections. 

 Meet with Oakland County Health to receive medication. 

 Scheduling and developing training.  Prepare for Company Officer training 

 Review 26 reports. 

 ICS 400 training. 

 Mental Illness training for the department. 

 Sgt. Ginther and Lt. Trussler attend and completed ICS-400 (Expanded Incidents) FEMA 

training at OCSD. 

 Complete HAZMAT Awareness training. 

 Provide Department with Police training on responding to calls involving people with mental 

illness. 



REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 22, 2018 – PAGE 1 

Present:  Chairperson Ostrowski; Vice-Chairperson Westerlund; Members: Borowski, 

Drummond, Grinnan, Ruprich, Stempien, and Wilensky 

 

Absent: Member: Copeland 

 

Also Present: Planning and Zoning Administrator, Saur 

 Planning Consultant, Borden 

 Council Liaison, Abboud 

  

Chairperson Ostrowski called the regular Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

in the Village of Beverly Hills municipal building at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Westerlund, second by Stempien, to amend the agenda removing item 10. 

Subcommittee updates ii. Recreational Marijuana and then approve the agenda as 

amended.  

 

Motion passed. 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD JULY 25, 2018 

Motion by Westerlund, second by Drummond, to amend the minutes; Page 2, Paragraph 

2; the first sentence of the paragraph should read “…cost and land PROPOSAL…” Also 

Page 4, First sentence should read “…and Mike DUL…” and then approve the minutes 

of the regular Planning Commission meeting held July 25, 2018 as amended.  

 

Motion passed. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

None. 

 

ADOPT PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 
Motion by Browski, second by Westerlund to approve and file the Planning Commission 

bylaws as submitted. 

 

Motion passed. 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MODIFICATIONS TO THE EXISTING 

GROUND SIGN AT THE SHOPPING CENTER AT 31215 THROUGH 31255 

SOUTHFIELD ROAD 

LSL Planning has reviewed the submittal requesting a refurbished collective ground sign for the 

shopping center at 31215-31255 Southfield Road. The existing sign is nonconforming for 

multiple reasons; sign area (80 square feet provided versus 30 square feet allowed), sign height 

(13’-3” provided versus 8’ allowed), internal illumination (100% versus 30% allowed), excess 

colors and lettering types (3 colors and 2 lettering types allowed), and not within a landscaped 

area (within the parking lot versus a 200-square foot landscaped area). The total project includes: 

clean-up and painting of the sign cabinet and poles, replacement of old wiring and lamps inside 



REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 22, 2018 – PAGE 2 

the cabinet, facing the sign base with a stone to match the building (sign base is currently wood), 

and new sign faces within the same total sign area. 

 

Based upon Paragraph 5 of Section 22.32.120 Nonconforming Signs, the sign clean-up/painting 

and wiring replacement are allowed as “normal maintenance” and “changing of electrical wiring 

and electrical devices,” respectively. Additionally, the proposal to add stone around the base of 

the sign complies with Paragraph 5 of Section 22.32.095.  

 

The total area (80 square feet) will remain the same though the actual number of tenants with 

advertising will increase from 5 to 7. The proposal essentially entails a division of the middle 

two sign faces, which currently run the full width of the sign and advertise 1 tenant each. These 

2 sign faces are proposed to be split into 2 signs each, resulting in the net increase of 2 tenant 

sign spaces. Paragraph 3 of Section 22.32.120 allows the “changing of surface sign space to a 

lesser or equal area.” LSL is of the opinion that the proposal meets this standard as the total area 

remains the same and 2 of the larger sign faces will be changed to a lesser area. The proposal 

brings the number of colors into compliance with current standards and provides a unified look 

for the entire shopping center. The dark bronze background will also reduce the amount of 

internal illumination visible through the text. While this change does not fully conform, it does 

bring the sign closer to compliance with current standards. 

 

Ruprich confirmed that the sign would be internally lit with white letters. 

 

Julie Strong, Property Manager for the plaza, explained that the sign would be internally lit with 

an opaque background as external lighting would not be bright enough to illuminate it 

sufficiently. The background would be an opaque vinyl that allows for the light to shine through 

the white letters. She further explained that after reviewing a variety of options there was no 

option to place the sign elsewhere without creating greater complications. Landscaping also 

posed some complications; there is no available water, and the asphalt creates barriers for most 

vegetation. 

 

Borden reiterated that the sign meets all the requirements for allowable maintenance on a non-

conforming sign. He also reviewed the lack of options for placement of the sign elsewhere on 

the property. He explained that per the ordinance, the work being done on the sign is within the 

parameters of “normal maintenance”, and the only part that needs approval is the sign face 

change. 

 

Strong agrees and reiterated the owner are not going to move the sign from its current location, 

but would like to improve the sign and area around it as much as is allowable within the 

ordinance. 

 

The Commission agreed they would like to see a change in illumination and landscaping. 

 

Motion by Wilensky, second by Westerlund, to postpone discussion, per applicant 

request, pending the submission of revised plans. 

 

 Motion passed. 



REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 22, 2018 – PAGE 3 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FAÇADE IMPROVEMENTS AT 15616 

THIRTEEN MILE ROAD, KFC 
Borden submitted his review of the revised building elevations as submitted by KFC for façade 

alterations and internal remodeling for the existing restaurant at 15616 W. 13 Mile Road.  

 

The request entails removal of the striped awnings around the building, removal of the pyramid 

feature atop the building, the addition of new red awnings and red and white painting around 

the building. Drive-in/through restaurants are allowed in the B District with special land use 

approval. For the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal entails only alterations to the 

building façade, so there is no change in use or operation of the site. Furthermore, since the 

request is only for exterior façade alterations, a full site plan review is not required and Planning 

Commission has the final review and approval authority. 

 

Borden outlined his review as follows: The applicant must present color samples to the 

Commission for their consideration. In our opinion, the revised elevations are an improvement 

from the original submittal and more consistent with the intent and purpose of the Village’s 

design regulations. The proposed wall sign/panel should be reduced in size and the front-center 

window should remain uncovered. Any action on the proposed façade alterations should clearly 

indicate that the signage depicted is not included in the review/decision. 

 

Derrick Haselhuhn, KFC, explained that the franchise is being rebranded for an updated look. 

The revised plans reduce the front stencil. The building footprint would remain as is, and the 

red and blue light bars along the top of the building would be removed. Ostrowski confirmed 

that as long as the external lighting is angled towards the building it will not cause any issues. 

 

Extensive conversation was had regarding whether the proposed panel and covering of the front 

window was considered a façade or part of the sign application. The Commission agreed that 

the front of the building could be painted within the façade alterations, however the panel and 

any design on it would be considered under the sign application. 

 

Motion by Drummond, second by Ruprich, that Planning Commission approve the 

façade of the KFC, with the exception of the panel which will be removed from the 

scope and the building will be painted red consistent with the red used through the plans. 

The panel will be discussed related to the sign application. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Drummond yes 

Grinnan no 

Ostrowski yes 

Ruprich yes 

Stempien no 

Westerlund yes 

Wilensky no 

Borowski yes 

Motion passed (5-3) 



REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 22, 2018 – PAGE 4 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF NEW SIGNAGE AT 15616 THIRTEEN 

MILE ROAD, KENTUCKY FRIED CHICKEN (KFC) 

Borden submitted his review of the application requesting new wall signs for the KFC restaurant 

at 15616 W. 13 Mile Road.  The proposal has been reviewed for compliance with the 

requirements of the Village Zoning Ordinance. If the application is approved by the 

Commission, the applicant must obtain a permit prior to installation.  

 

Borden outlined his review as related to compliance with Sections 22.32.095 and 22.32.110, 

which provide regulations for wall signs. Wall sign is permitted to be 30 SF maximum, they 

are requesting 156 SF. The permitted area (ground) coverage is 30 SF max, the applicant is 

requesting 89.12 SF. The height requirement is 8’ above grade (min.) the applicant is proposing 

more than 11’. Related to illumination requirements, the wall sign is in compliance; the 

applicant must provide fixture details. The current ground sign is an existing non-conformity. 

The applicant must confirm that the reader board text will match one of the two fonts proposed. 

 

Borowski contended that only the face of the Colonel should be considered the sign. 

 

Consideration was given related to the classification of the large front panel as either a sign, or 

part of the building façade. It was determined that if the large front panel were painted in a solid 

red (as opposed to the red and white striped as proposed) it would be part of the façade and not 

the sign. 

 

Motion by Stempien, second by Drummond, that discussion on the sign be postponed 

to give the applicant the opportunity to submit a request for a variance before the Zoning 

Board of Appeals. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (8-0) 

 

Motion by Stempien, second by Drummond, that the existing ground sign be approved 

as submitted, requiring the changeable letters to be black. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (8-0) 

 

REVIEW DRAFT LANGUAGE AMENDING SECTION 22.08.100 ACCESSORY 

BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND USES 

Saur reviewed the proposed changes, these included new specifications related to mechanical 

units, and regulations for detached accessory buildings. 

 

Mechanical units (i.e. a/c condensers or generators) may be placed in the side open space 

provided they: 

i. shall be located at least five (5) feet from adjoining lot lines; 

ii. shall be located not more than five (5) feet from the principal building; 

iii. shall be screened with dense shrubs maintained at a height not less than one (1) foot 



REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 22, 2018 – PAGE 5 

above the height of the unit; and 

iv. shall limit noise in excess of sixty-five (65) decibels (dB(A)) at the nearest property 

line. 

 

j. Detached accessory buildings containing one hundred twenty (120) square feet of ground 

floor area or more shall be required to obtain a Zoning Compliance Permit prior to 

construction or installation.  Such buildings shall provide a foundation or rat wall and must 

be compatible with the principal building in terms of style, design, material and/or color(s). 

 

Saur clarified that a Zoning Compliance Permit is not considered a Building Permit, but ensures 

that the resident is aware of the Ordinances and are compliant. 

 

The Commission agreed that a rat wall was not necessary in all instances and the guidelines 

should be broken down on the permit. They also requested that the language be reviewed by 

the Fire Marshall to ensure compliance with all state fire codes. 

 

The complete draft is available in the Village office. 

 

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 

At the Village of Beverly Hills Council meeting held February 20, 2018, the Council voted on 

directives for the Planning Commission to establish subcommittees on several topics and report 

back to the Council at designated future meeting dates on their findings.  

 

A. Lot coverage 
Stempien and Westerlund shared a presentation of photos of homes in various neighborhoods 

across the Village and surrounding cities with examples of side setback changes depending on 

the zone or build. The median lot coverage percentages in the Village range from 8.7% to 20% 

depending on the zone and density. In further research, all surrounding communities have lot 

coverage ordinances. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Kay Michaels, Kirkshire; Cynthia Nagel, Kirkshire; and Racheal Hrydziuszko, Evergreen; 

spoke in support of the progress on lot coverage review, but continue to have concerns about 

the impact current building projects will have on the Village. 

 

LIAISON COMMENTS 

Abboud announced the Zoning Board of Appeals will be training at the September meeting. 

Village Clerk Ellen Marshall is retiring at the end of August 2018.  

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS 

Saur thanked Ellen Marshall for her 23 years of service to the Village. 

 

COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS  

Stempien would like to see sign regulations taken out of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Westerlund expressed his sadness over the passing of Pat Greening and appreciation for all she 



REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 22, 2018 – PAGE 6 

and her husband Don did for the community. 

 

Motion by Borowski, second by Ruprich, to adjourn the meeting at 10:53 p.m.  

 

Motion passed. 

 

 

 

 

 

George Ostrowski   Chris Wilson   Elizabeth M. Lyons 

Planning Commission  Village Clerk   Recording Secretary 

Chairperson  

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION. 

 


	Agenda Only
	Beverly Hills            Municipal Building
	Regular Village Council Meeting     18500 W. 13 Mile Rd.
	Tuesday, October 2, 2018       7:30 p.m.
	AGENDA

	C1. Review and Consider approval of Council Minutes dated 9-18-18
	C2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, October 1, 2018
	100118 Cover Sheet
	A

	ck reg
	man ck reg

	C3. Refer request from DCD for site plan and special land use approval to the Planning Commission
	C4. Approve payment to Canfield Equipment Service for Police Vehicle Update
	C4. Approve payment to Canfield Equipment Service for Police Vehicle Update
	Canfield Equipment Invoices

	C5. Approval of payment to Johnson Thermal Temp for Public Safety cooling system repair
	JohnsonThermal Temp Memo
	Johnson Thermal Temp Bill

	B1. Review and consider subcommittee’s recommendation to fill the vacancy on the Birmingham Area Cable Board
	B2. Review and consider awarding contract for the 2018 Road Improvement Program
	Memo re 2018 Recommendationfor 2018 Road Improvement Program
	20180073_SpringConst_BidTab

	B3. Review and consider approval of Concurrence Form for request for Declaration Ruling on Lead and Copper Rules
	B3. Review and consider approval of Concurrence Form for request for Declaration Ruling on Lead and Copper Rules
	MDEQ Concurrence
	Request for Declaratory Ruling MDEQ

	B4. Set Public Hearing date November 6, 2018 to receive comments on special land use requested by Woodside Athletic Club, 22440 W. Thirteen Mile Rd.
	Manager's Report
	Managers Report 09-28-18
	201809281053

	Info Sheet
	a. Beverly Hills Public Safety Activity Sept. 13-27, 2018
	b. Minutes from a Planning Commission meeting held 8-22-18

	STREET ADDRESS: 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Rd.
	CITY: Beverly Hills
	STATE: MI
	ZIP CODE: 48025
	TELEPHONE NO:  248  646    6404
	EMAIL ADDRESS: cwilson@villagebeverlyhills.com
	TITLE IF SIGNING FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY: 
	DATE: 
	NAME OF GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY: Village of Beverly Hills


